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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Packtime Innovations Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Packtime Innovations Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not eXpress
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or. otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. ;




Responsibilities of Management for The Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.




* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”,

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act.




h) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

1) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which would impact its
financial position as at 31 March 2024 - refer note 32(i) to the financial statements.

ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company - refer note 43 to the financial statements.

iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

» directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company, or
* provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, incl uding foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party, or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) The Company has not declared/ paid any dividend during the year.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recordin g audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that, as described in note 41 to the financial statements, audit
trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data when using certain access ri ghts and also
for certain changes made using privileged/ administrative access right. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature bein g tampered
with in respect of accounting software.




As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N

&

per Mohi pta

Partner

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 24528337BKDFZY9458

New Delhi
May 15,2024



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of Packtime
Innovations Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, plant and equipment by which all Property, plant and equipment are verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property,
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment
(including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory.

(b) As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements, the company has been sanctioned working
capital and cash credit limits in excess of Rs. Five crores in aggregate from bank on the basis fo
security of current assets of the company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal
course of audit of financials statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company
with such banks are not in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company on
account of timing difference in reporting to the banks and routine book closure process of the
Company and the details where are as follows:




(Rs. In lacs)

Value as per Value as per
books of quarterly
account (INR return/statement
Lacs) (INR Lacs) Discrepancy
Class of Assets Quarter ending (A) (B) (A-B)
Inventories June 30, 2023 6,174.35 5,659.27 515.08
Inventories September 30, 2023 6,046.20 6,186.52 (140.32)
Inventories December 31, 2023 6,894.52 6,969.51 (74.99)
Trade Receivable June 30, 2023 3,815.77 4,352.64 (536.87)
Trade Receivable September 30, 2023 4,336.32 4,499.02 (162.70)
Trade Receivable December 31, 2023 4,013.34 4,825.49 (812.15)
Trade Receivable March 31, 2024 4,370.43 4,622.76 (252.33)
Trade Payable June 30, 2023 3,372.94 2,581.10 791.84
Trade Payable September 30, 2023 3,684.28 2,662.88 1021.40
Trade Payable December 31, 2023 4,010.92 3,191.33 819.59
Trade Payable March 31, 2024 3,606.37 2,620.79 985.58

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any

(iv)

v)

loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and section
186 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section

148 of the Act in respect of products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of
account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for
the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination
of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST,
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, Provident

fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Value
added tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited by the Company on
account of disputes.




(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year,

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or government authority.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xi1) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.




(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv)(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under
audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) As represented by the management, there is no Core Investment Company within the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank), hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.




(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fulfil the
criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b)
of the Order are not applicable.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAIFirm’s Registration Number: 007895N
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per Mohit Gupta

Partner |

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 24528337BKDFZY 9458

New Delhi
May 15, 2024



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of Packtime
Innovations Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Packtime
Innovations Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the desi gn, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and com pleteness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of




unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICATI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N

Sl

per Mohit Gupta

Partner

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 24528337BKDFZY 9458

New Delhi
May 15,2024



Pachktime Innovations Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated)*
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 10,878.08 11,048.01
Capital work-in-progress 3 1,129.36 =
Right-of-use assets 4 801.21 832.84
Intangible assets 3 21.84 24.56
Finzncial assets
(i) Investments 3 = -
{ii} Other Financial Assets 7 65.12 39.78
Income tax assets (net) g 23.14 16.08
Other non-current assets 9 137.31 17.30
Total non-current assets 13,056.04 11,978.58
Current assets
Inventories 0 5,143.23 6,367.B5
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 11 4,370.43 3,607.10
(if} Cash and cash equivalents 12z 57.49 60.03
(iil) Bank balances other than (ii) abave 132 - 231.40
Other current assets 9 580.01 661.62
Total current assets 11,161.16 10,928.00
Total assets 24,217.20 22,906.58
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 2,499.70 2,499.70
Other equity 15 (4,320.86) (2,889.97)
Total equity (1,821.16) (390.27)
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 16 12,176.87 10,745.42
(i) Lease liabilities 17 - 14.84
Provisions 18 101.59 73.25
Deferred tax lizbilities (net) 19 - -
Other non-currant liakilities 20 612,91 G
Total non-current lizbilities 12,891.37 10,833.51
Current liabilities
Financiaf liabilities
{i) Borrowings is 9,209.22 8,285.58
(i} Lease labilites 17 15.16 ZL.71
(i) Trade payables 21
{a) total sutstanding dues of micro enterprizes and small 106,69 470.03
enterprises
{b) tota! putstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 3,499.68 3,129.44
enterprises
{iv) Other financial liabilities 22 52.34 7.16
Provisions 18 50.97 145.71
Other current liabilities 20 172.93 403.73
Total current liabilities 13,146.99 12,463.34
Total liabilities 26,038.36 23,296.85
Total equity and liabilities —_— 24,217.20 22,906.58
*Please refer nate no, 39 regarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8.
The above balance sheet should be read in conjugation with accompanying notes,
For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Packtime Innovations Private Limited
Firm Registration Number: 007895N
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per Mohit Gup
Partner
Membership Number 528337

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024

Sheetal Arora
Director
DIN - 00704252

1) "

ahul Rastogi
Company Secretary

Membership Mo, A30320

Place: New Delhi
Cata: May 15, 2024

Arash Dhawan
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Packtime Innovations Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated)*
1 Income
Revenue from operations 23 25,042.37 19,304.05
Other income 24 2B7.24 90.05
Total income (I) 25,329.61 19,394.10
11 Expenses
Cest of materials consumed 25 20,618.07 15,446.94
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 26 (B27.64) (585.12)
Employee benefits expense 37 1,237.45 1,070.45
Finance costs 28 2,243.55 1,964.27
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 1,089.14 873.96
Other expenses 30 2,403 .66 2,362.91
Total expenses (II) 26,764.27 21,133.41
111 Loss before tax (I-II) (1,434.66) (1,739.31)
IV Tax Expense:
Current tax 31 = -
Deferred tax 31 (0.95) (2.00)
Total tax expense (IV) (0.925) (2.00)
WV Loss for the year (I1I-IV) (1,433.71) (1,737.31)
VI Other comprehensive income
(i} Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) of the defined benefit plan 3.77 7.93
{ify Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) of the defined benefit plan (0.95) (2.00)
Other comprehensive income for the year(VI) 2.82 5.93
VII Total comprehensive foss for the year (V + VI) (1,430.89) (1,731.38)
Earnings per equity share (EPS)
Basic EPS (in INR) (143.37) (173.73)
Diluted EPS (in INR) (143.37) {173.73)

*Please refer note no. 39 regarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8.

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjugation with accompanying notes,

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 007895N

per Mohit Supta
Partner
Membership Number 528337
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Packtime Innovations Private Limited

heetal Arora

Director

DIN - 00704292

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024

Rahul Rastogi
Company Secretary

Membership No. A30320

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024
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Packtime Innovations Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

a. Equity share capital

Particulars

Amount
Equity shares of INR 100 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at April 01, 2022 1,000.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year =
As at March 31, 2023 1,000.00
Changes in equity share capltal during the year R
As at March 31, 2024 1,000.00
Other equity

Reserves and Surplus
Equity component
. of optionally
Particulars convertibla Total
Debentures Security premium
PRCB Retained earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2022 7,275.13 864.43 (9,298.15) (1,158.59)
Profit for the year - = (1,?3?,3i] (1,737.31)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax £ = 5.93 5.93
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (1,731.38) (1,731.38)
Bal as at March 31, 2023 7,275.13 864.43 (11,029.53) {2,889.97)
Profit for the year = - (1,433.71) (1,433.71)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - - 2.82 2.82
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (1,430.89) (1,430.89)
Bal as at March 31, 2024 7,275.13 864.43 (12,460.42) (4,320.86)
The above bal sheet should be read in conjugation with ac

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: D07895M

per Mohft Gupta
Partner
Membership Number 528337

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Packtime Innovations Private Limited

Director
DIN - 00704292

o4

ahul Rastogi
Company Secretary

Membership Mo, A30320

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024

Mﬂfw Jo\D’SG

Arash Dhawan
Whole-time director
DIN - 01051433

ol Shivaji Khankari
Chief Financial Officer




Packtime Innovations Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax (1,434.66) (1,768.71)
Adjustments to reconcile prefit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,089.14 §73.96
Net foreign exchange differences (73.32) (76.36)
Loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.14 -
Finance income (6.43) (12.65)
Finance costs 2,243.55 1,866.19
Government grant income (206.71) -
Waorking capital adjustments:
(Increase)/ Decerease in trade receivables (690.01) (1,407.49)
(Increase)/ Decerease in inventories 224.62 (2,056.73)
(Increase)/ Decerease in financial asset - others (25.34) 104.36
(Increase)/ Decerease in other asset 68.12 513.82
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions (22.63) 79.76
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payable 6.90 1,202.31
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liability 26.84 -
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liability {230.68) 107.35
969.53 (574.19)
Income tax paid (7.05) 2.57
Net cash used in operating activities 962.48 (571.62)
B. Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,293.05) (50.73)
Bank deposit not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net) 231.40 (16.79)
Interest received (finance income) 6.43 16.11
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (1,055.22) (51.41)
C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Interest paid (1,003.78) {737.21)
Proceeds from barrowings 34,140.84 49,597.13
Repayment of borrowings (33,023.18) {48,186.06)
Payment of principal portion for lease liability (21.39) (6.43)
Payment of interest on lease liability {2.29) (0.90)
Net cash flows from financing activities 90.20 666.53
Met increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2.54) 43,50
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 60.03 16.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 57.49 60.03
Component of Cash and cash equivalent
Balances with banks
- In current account 54,72 51.59
Cash in hand 2.77 8.44
57.49 60.03

The above balznice sheet should be read in conjugation with accompanying notes.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 007895N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Packtime Innovations Private Limited

gt N0

per Mohit Gupt Sheetal Arora Arash Dhawan ~ &
Partner Director Whole-time director QL}-
Membership Number 528337 DIN - 00704292 DIN - 01091433 &
NO!
%ﬁ”ﬁ\
Rahul Rastogi Amol hivaji Khankari
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Membership No, A30320

Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024 Date: May 15, 2024



Packtime Innovations Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.6

Corperate information

Packtime Innovations Private Limited ("hereinafter referred to the Company”) was incorporated on June 09, 2015. Ttis a step down subsidiary
company of Mankind Pharma Limited. The company is engaged in manufacturing of Pharma packaging Products,

Material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian Accounting standards (Ind-AS) financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules 2016 and
other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting principles generally accepted in India.

'The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise stated.

Basis of presentation and preparation of separate financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique, In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date, Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36
Tmpairment of Assets'.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs

to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable Inputs for the asset or liability.
Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assels and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it

is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be seld or consumed in normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¥ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

b= It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

» It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

B It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

I+ There |s no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-
current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivaients. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional currency of the Company.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 01,
2023. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to
amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2023,

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8:

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in acceunting policies and the correction of errors, It
has also been dlarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company's standalone financial statements,




Packtime Innovations Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

2.7

2.9

2.11

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies- Amendments to Ind AS 1:

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose
their ‘significant” accounting paolicies with a requirement to disclose their *material’ accounting palicies and adding guidance on how entities apply the
concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of
any items in the Company's financial statements.

(i) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12:

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated cutomer returns, rebates,
trade discounts and other similar allowances.

Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers, Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer,

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which establishes a comprehensive
framewerk to depict timing and amount of revenue to be recognised. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using modified retrospective method,
where any effect arising upon application of this standard is recognised as at the date of initial application (l.e April 1, 2018). There was no impact
on adoption of Ind AS 115 to the financial statements of the Company.

The new revenue standard supersedes current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue to be recognized
when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

Sate of soods

Revenue from sale of goods are recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer, where recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably and there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods and the ameount of revenue can be measured reliably. The transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership
aenerally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers. Revenue from sale of goods includes excise duty but exclude sales tax and value added
tax.

Gther income

Interest Income is recognised on time groportion basis with reference to effeclive interest rate method.

Export benefits ave'l.bic under poos zlent schemes - r2 accounted to the extent considcred receivable.

inventories

inventories are walued at the lower of cost and the net realisable value after providing for cbsolescence and other losses, where considered
necessary. Cost of inventories includes all costs and overheads in bringing the inventories to their present condition. Cost is arrived at moving
weighted average basis. Work-in-process and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads and, where applicable, excise duty.

Met realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and cost necessary to make sale.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 "Statement of Cash Flows”, whereby profit/loss before extraordinary items and
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruais of past or future cash receipts or payments, The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregzated based on the available information.

Cash and cash eguivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months
or less from the date of acquisition), highly liguid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost of property, plant and eguipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any
directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and lecation for its Intended use. It also includes the initial estimate of the costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, wherever applicable, Items such as spares are capitalized when
they meet the definition of property, plant and eguipment,

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment, Likewise, on initial recognition, expenditure to be incurred lowards major inspections and overhauls
are identified as a separate component and depreciated over the expected period il the next overhaul expenditure.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only Iif it increases the future economic
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance/life. All other expenses on existing property, plant and
equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for
the period during which such expenses are incurred. T




Packtime Innovations Private Limited
Motes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

2.12

2.13

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized nel within other Income/other expenses in statement of profit and loss,

Capital work in progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in capital work in progress account, At the point when an asset is capable of operating in the
manner intended by management, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs

associated with the commissioning of an asset are capitalised until the period of commissioning has been completed and the asset is ready for its
intended use.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, as per useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. Management's assessment of independent technical evaluation/advice takes into
account, inter alia, the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement
and rmaintenance support. The depreciation method, asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period prospectively.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies
Act, 2013 except in respect of mobile phones in which case life of the asset is considered to be 2 years. Leasehold land is amortized on a straightline
hasis over the unexpired period of the leases.

Additions on account of insurance spares, additions/extensions forming an integral part of existing plants and the revised carrying amount of the
assets |dentified as impaired, are depreciated over residual life of the respective asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is dereccgnised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and Is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year and changes in estimates, If any, are accounted for
prospectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on Initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, If any.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life. Software is amortised using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
three years or the tenure of the respective software license, whichever is lower.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset Is
significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.
Subseqguent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of an intangible assets is added to its book value only if it increases the future economic benefits from
the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance/life.

Derecognition of i fengilde assels

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Galns or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised,

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of all of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there Is any Indication based on internal/ external factors that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the assets for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of asset (or
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount, An impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets {or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs directly relating to the acguisition, construction or production of & qualifying capital project under construction are capitalised and
added to the project cost during construction until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their intended use i.e. when they are capable
of commercial production. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs
incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the inceme generated from such current
investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the
amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company during the year.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and lass during the extended periods when the active development on the
qualifying assets is interrupted.
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2,14

2.15

2.16

i

Foreign currency transactions and translations
Items Included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.
Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated inte the functional currency at exchange rates
prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominaled in other currencies and measured at historical cost or fair value
are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on which such values were determined.
all exchange differences are included in statement of profit and loss except any exchange differences on monetary items designated as an effective
hedging instrument of the currency risk of designated forecasted sales ar purchases, which are recognized in the other comprehensive income.
Employee benefits
Employee benefits Include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated absences.

i ributio
The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as
an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

fi fit plan
The Company has a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to employees who have completed
five years or more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment, being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn
salary and the number of years of employment with the Company.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation Is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The interest cost is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit and loss.
The liability or asset recognised In the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period, The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the prejected unit credit method.
Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised
during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve
rnonths after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service,
The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under :
(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future

compensated absences; and
(b} in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.
Long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the periad in which the employee renders the related
service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date on the basis of actuarial
valuation.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Changes in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past
service cost,
Leases ;
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Company as a lessee
The Company's lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and building. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assels representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i} Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is avaiiable for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and Impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, Initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years)
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting
policies in section 'Impairment of non-financial assets'.
i} Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments alsa
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as expenses {unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.
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In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate mplicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is Increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.qg., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change In the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

2.18

2.19

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the |ease term.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (less) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, If any) by the
welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after
tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of
any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only If thelr conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from
continuing crdinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been
issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined Independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and
potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Taxes on income

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates items
recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit
and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
iy has a legally enforceable right to set off the recegnised amounts; and
ii) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deterced tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it Is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has becomne probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recoverad.,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

rrent an fel ar

Current and deferred tax are recognised In statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in ather comprenhensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation, When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value
using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maoney and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A contingent liability is & possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a Hability that
cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

In the normal course of business, contingent liabllities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. There are certain obligations
which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify
reliably, and such obligations are treated as Contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the financial
statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company involved, it is nat
expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial _-:“ij".- Win:
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Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be
measured reliably and it Is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the
grants will be received.

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognised as Income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate.

Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income In equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset and presented within other income.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate,
the effect of this favorable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and
the government grant Is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds recelved. The loan Is
subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, an initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss are recognised immediately in statement
of profit and loss.

Financial asseis

All regular way purchases ar sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are

purchases or sales of financial assets that reguire delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or conwvention in the
mat ketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of
the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss (except for debt investments
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

= the assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

« the contractual terms of the Instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value,

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating Interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is
recoanised in profit or loss and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initlal recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss is included In the “other gains and losses’ line item,

Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in profit or loss.
Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in profit or loss.
Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI financlal assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
aof investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the loss allowance for @ financial Instrument at an armount equal to the lifelime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses,

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the Company measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in
the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument Instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To
make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default cccurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is
avallable without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash fiows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither lransfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continugs to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have te pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of awnership of a
transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration recelved
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised In other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset),
the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing invalvemnent,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recegnised in profit or loss if such gain or loss
would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised In
other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues te be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of
tha relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Ciassification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual errangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

AR equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the asseis of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments istuzd by a Company entity are récognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly In equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. However, financial liabilities that
arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in
accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or It is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability |5 classified as held for trading if:
« it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

« it Is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liabllity other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:
« such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

« the financial liability forms part of @ Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated

on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Company
is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as
at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109,

Financial liabllities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of profit and loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in statement of profit and loss incorporates any Interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the 'other
gains and losses' line item.
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However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the falr value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability Is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in statement of profit and |oss.
The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised in statement of profit and loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss,

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the Company as at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in staternent of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial Habilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the
effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective Interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an Integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums ar discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or {(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Forelgn exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the
foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the Instruments and are recognised in the "other gains and losses’
line item in the statement of profit and loss.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that fereign currency and translated at the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains
or losses and is recognised In the statement of profit and less.

Derccognition of financial liabilities

The Campany derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

Derivative financial intruments

The Company uses derivative forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
neriod, Derlvatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains
=1 lgsses arising frem changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken diractly to profit or loss.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assefs fer processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current non-current classification of assets and labilities.

Critical accouniing judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting pelicies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate Is revised and future periods affected,

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in the following accounting policies and/or notes:

Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The folowing are the critical judgements, apart from those estimations that the management has made in the process pf applying the Company
Accounting Policies and that have most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Provisions and contingenciles

The significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects are not recognized in the balance sheet. In the normal course of business,
contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Campany. Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business.
There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are
very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent liahilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as
ligbilities in the financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company
involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial positien or profitability. .
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted price in active markets are available are measured using valuation
techniques, The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment Is
required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and vaolatility, Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial Instruments.

Impairment of assets

In assessing the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits such as
changes in commodity prices, the Company’s business plans and changes in regulatory environment are taken into consideration. The carrying value
of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic
and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the
abovementioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets. !

Useful life of property, plant and egquipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as disclosed above are depreciated over their useful economic lives. Management reviews the
useful economic lives at least once a year and any changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying values. The
Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment, for possible impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that
carrying values of the assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to significant
reduction in profits such as changes in commodity prices, the Company’s business plans and changes in regulatory environment are taken into
consideration.

The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commodity prices, market demand and
supply, econemic and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in
the above mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets.

Contingencies and commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the Company. A tax provision is
recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that
obligation.

Where it is management’s assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably quantified or is uncertain the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the likelihood of an adverse outcome is remote. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial slatements.

When considering the cdlassification of a legal or tax cases as probable, possible or remote there is judgement involved. This pertains to the
application of the legislation, which in certain cases is based upon management’s interpretation of country specific tax.

Key sources of estimation uncertaininty

(a) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The Board of directors of the
Company has designated the Chief Financial Officer of the Company determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

(b) Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future
taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future
adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The firm establishes pravisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such
provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable
entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

(c) Impairment of Financizl assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the firm uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on firm's past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(d) Impairment of non-Financial assets

The firm assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the firm estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or firm's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used, These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.

Standards issued but not effective
There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2024,
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Building Plant and Furniture and Vehicles Office Electrical Compulers Taotal Capital Work in
machinery Tixtures equipment  Equipments & Progress
Fittings

Costf carrying value:
Balance as at April 01, 2022 4,257.24 9,336.30 47.24 7586 8.24 933.63 5287 14,711.28 =
Additions = 20,95 4.43 13.29 0.06 = 4.7% 43.52
Balance as at March 31, 2023 4,257.24 9,357.25 51.67 89.15 8.30 933.63 57.66 14,754.90 =
Additlons 4589 786.65 25.29 2.80 7.54 - B.31 B76.88 1,129.36
Disposals/ adjustments = = - = {0.38) - {2.20) (2.58) -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 4,203.13 10,143.90 76.96 91.95 15.86 933.63 63.77 15,629.20 1,129.36
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at April 01, 2022 490.21 1,970,956 13.63 22.22 4.66 322.85 3461 2,859.14 =
Depraciation expense (refer note 22) 134.95 599.72 A.70 5.23 1.59 BE.70 B.86 B847.75 =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 625.16 2,570.68 18.33 31.45 6.25 411.55 43.47 3,706.89 =
Depreciation expense (refer note 29) 135.68 795.89 5,82 10,63 1.45 B8.94 B8.27 1,046,629 =
Disposats) adjustments (0,37} {2.07) (2.44)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 760.84 3,366.57 24.16 42.08 733 500.49 49.67 4,751.14 -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3,542.29 6,777.33 52.80 49.87 8.52 433.14 14.10 10,878.06 1,129.36
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3,632.08 6,786.57 33.34 57.70 2.05 522.08 14.19 11,048.01 -

Note
1. Property, Plant and Equipment has been hypothicated as security by the company (refer note 18}

2. The Company undisputedly possesses the title deeds for all properties held by the Company, presented under ‘Buildings’ in the sbove schedule. Further, the Company does not hald any property where-in the title

deed dees not convey 2 lucid ownership Interest in favar of the Company with respect te such property,

3, During the year ended March 31, 2024 additions to plant and equipment includes INR 593,89 lacs (March 31, 2023 : Nii) on account of gavernment Bssistance in the form of the duty benefa availed under Export
Promotien Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme on import of plant and machinery. Closing balance of Capital work-in-progress as at March 31, 2024 include [NR 225,72 lacs (as at March 31, 2023 : Nil) for this benefie.

4, Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2024

Amount in CWIP for a pericd of Total
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
yeaar years
Projects in progress 1,129.36 = = = 1,129.36
Taotal 1,122,36 - = - 1,129.36
As at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3
year years
Projects in progress s = * = =
Total = rd = = =

There are no projects in intangible asset under development as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 whose completion is overdue or cost of which has exceeded in comparison to its origingl plan.
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Right-of-use assets

Leasehold Land Leasehold Building Total
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at April 01, 2022 832.32 = 832.32
Additions = 44,97 44.97
Balance as at March 31, 2023 832.32 44.97 877.29
Additions = = -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 832.32 44.97 877.29
Accumulated amortisation:
Balance as at April 01, 2022 27.45 - 27.45
Depreciation expense (refer note 29) Q.15 7.85 17.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 36.60 7.85 44.45
Depraciation expense (refer note 29) 9.15 22.48 31.63
Balance as at March 31, 2024 45,75 30.33 76.08
Net carrying value
Balance as at March 31, 2024 786.57 14.64 801.21
Balance as at March 31, 2023 795.72 37.12 B832.84
Notes:
The following is the carrying value of lease liability and movement thereof during the year ended 31 March 2024:
Particualrs Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2022 -
Addition during the year 43.94
Finance cost accrued during the year 0.90
Payment of lease liabilitles (8.29)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 36.55
Finance cost accrued during the year 2.29
Payment of lease liabilities (23.68)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 15.16

As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Current Lease liability (refer note 17) 15.16
Mon Current Lease lizbility (refer note 17)

21.71
14.84

15.16

36.55

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are as follows:

Maturity of lease liabilities As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Lease obligations

Mot later than one year 15.65
Later than one year but not later than 5 years -
Later than 5 years =

Interest Expense

Mot later than one year 0.49
Later than one year but not later than 5 years -
Later than 5 years -

. The weighted average Incremental borrowings rate applied to lease liabilities is B.50%,

The following amount recognised in statement of profit & loss

24.00
15.33

2.29
0,49

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

i} Depreciation expense 31.63
i) Expense related to short term lease =

17.00
4.79

31.63

21.79
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

5.1

Intangible assets

Computer software Total Intangible asset
under development
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at April 01, 2022 14.71 14.71 31.74
Additions 32,57 32.57 0.83
Disposals - £ (32.57)
Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2023 47.28 47.28 -
Additions 8.10 8.10 E
Balance as at March 31, 2024 55.38 55.38 -
Accumulated amortisation:
Balance as at April 01, 2022 13.51 13.51 =
Amortisation expense (refer note 29) 9.21 9.21 =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 22.72 22,72 -
Amortisation expense (refer note 29) 10.82 10.82 =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 33.54 33.54 “
Net Carrying value:
Ealance as at March 21, 2024 21.84 21.84 -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 24.56 24.56 =
Intangible asset under development Ageing
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Amount in Intangible asset under development for a year of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
B Projects in progress - - - = =
il Projects temporarily suspended - - & = =
Total - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Amount in Intangible asset under development for a year of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
I Projects In progress 4.26 8.68 18.80 = 31.74
ii. Projects tempaorarily suspended = 5 - & -
Totai 4£6 8.68 LB.SD - 31.74
Hote:

There are no projects in intangible asset under development as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 whose completion is overdue or cost of which has exceeded in

comparisen to (ts orlainal plan.
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6 Investments As at
31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

Face Value

Units/ shares Amount
per share

Units/ shares

Amount

Non- Current
Investment in unquoted equity instruments - at cost,
fully paid up
Foreign Subsidiaries
Packlime Global Packaging Materials Trading L.L.C AED 1000

Less | Provision for write off/diminution in the value of
Investment

Total

MNote: During the year, the company has been formally liguidated by complying with all the requirement of RBIL

7 Other financial assets
Mon-Current
(Unszecured and considered good)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security deposits

Motes:

147

29.06

(29.06)

—_— .

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

65.12

39.78

65.12

39.78

a, Security deposits includes interest accrued and not due amounting to INR 1.35 iacs and INR 5.15 lacs as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023 respectively,

& Income tax assets

Nen-current tax assels
Income tax recelvable (net of provisions)

9 Other assets

Men-Curvent

(unsecured and censicfered good)

Balzncas with Governniet authorities (paid under protest)
Capilal advances

Prepaid Expenses

Current

{unszcured and ¢ sidared good)
Prepaid expenses

Advances to vendors

Advances to employees

Balances with Government authorities

{unsecured and considered doubtful)
Other receivables
Less: Provision for doubtful advances
Advances to vendors
l.ess: Provision for doubtful advances
Notes
(a) Movement in allowance for doubtful advances
Balance as at the beginning of the year

Provision utilised during the year
Balance 3= at the end of the year

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

23.14

16.09

23.14

16.09

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

1.77 =
126.00 5.48
9.54 7.82
137.31 17.30
43,56 35.64
210.94 110.06
1.78 0.67
333.73 515.25
- 54,49
- (54.49)
- 0.83
- (0.83)
580.01 661.62
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
£5.32 55.32
(55.32) -

5532
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

i0 Inveniories

Raw materials
In hand

Work-in-progress
Finished goods
In hand
In transit

Stores and spares

Consumables

11 Trade receivables

Uinsecured
Considered good

Considered good - related parties {refer note 38}

11.1 Trade receivakles ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

3,097.01
1,955.80
841.64
209.73

59.05

4,047.03

950,67

1,228.86

7.50

133.79

6,143.23

6,367.85

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

3,929.46
440.97

3,577.89
29.21

4,370,43

3,607.10

Farticulars

Outstanding for

Curent but not

periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 & months = 1
Months year

due

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables -
cansidered good

Undisputed Trade Reczivables -
which have significant increase in
credit risk

Undisputed Trade recelvable -
credit impaired

Disputed Trade receivables -
consldarad good

Disputed Trade receivables - which
hawve significant increase in credit
risk

Disputed Trads recaivables - credit
impalred

_As at 31 Merch 2023

2,225.61 1,979.40 120.14

4528 - i

4,370,432

2,225.61 1,972.40 120,14
v

45,28 - =

4,370.43

Farticulars

Curent bt not

Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

due Less than 6 & months — 1
Months year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed Trode Recelvables -
considered goad

Undisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increasa in
credii risk

Undisputed Trade receivable -
credit Impalred

Disputed Trade receivables -
considered good

Disputed Trade recelvables - which
nave significant increase in credit
risk

Disputed Trade receivables - credit
impaired

213726 1,469.84

1,607.10

2,137.26 1,469.84 75

3,607.10

a. The average credit period to customers ranges upto 60 days.

b.  Rereivables are deered to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company’s normal tarms and conditions of business.

basie with reference Lo the customer’s credit quality and prevailing market conditions.

12 cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- In current account

Cash In hand

Mote:

These terms and condit‘ons are determined on a case to case

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

54,72 51.59
177 B.4q
57.49 60.03

There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting periud and prior period.

13 Other bank balances

Current

Bank deposits with original maturity of maore than three menths but less than twalve months
Bank deposits with origiral maturity of mare than twelve months but remaining maturity of less than twelve months

Mote:

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

7.18
224,22

231.40

a.  Bank deposits includes interest accrued and not due on deposit account with banks amounting to TNR Nil and INR 45,63 lacs as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023 respectively,

b.  Bank deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months but remaining maturity of less than twelve months have been disclosed under other bank balances,
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14 Share capital As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised
10,00,000 equity shares of TNR 100 each 1,000.00 1,000.00
{March 31, 2023 : 10,00,000 equity shares of INR 100 each)
15,00,000 preference shares of TNR 104 each 1,500.00 1,500.00
(March 31, 2023 ; 15,00,000 preference shares of INR 100 each)
Issued, subscribad and fully paid up
10,060,000 equity shares of INR 100 esch fully paid up 1,000.00 1,000.00
{March 31, 2023 : 10,00,000 equity shares of INR 100 each)
14,998,700 praference shares of INR 104 each 1,499.70 1,493.70
{March 31, 2023; 14,539,700 preference shares of TNR 100 each)
2,499.70 2,499.70
Notes:
(i) Rights, preferances and restrictions attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 100 per share, Each nholder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, holder of
equity thares will be enttled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of afl preferential amount, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
sharehalders,
(ii} Rights, p and hed to Pr Shares
Each convertible preference share has & par value of INR 100 and is convertitile =t the option of the issuer into Eguity shares of the Company on the basis of ane equity share for every ene prefersnce shares
held. Any preference shares not converted will be redeemed on March 22, 2042 & f2ir value of shares en the date of redamption, or 1ssue price of OCPS L@, INR 157.64/- for each OCPS, whichever is higher.
The preference shares carry & dividend of 0.01% per annum. The dividend riphts are non-cumulative, The praference shares rank ahead of the equity shares in the event of a bquidation, The presentation of
the liatility and equity portiens of these shares ks exglained In the summary of significant accounting pelicy,
(iii} Reconciliation of the numbar of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the yean:
a) Issued equity capital
As at As at
HMarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Humber Amount Number Amount
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,600,000 1.000.00 10,060,000 1,000.00
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,00,000 1,000.00 140,00,000 1,000.00
b) Eguity compenent of optionally convertible debenturas
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Amount Amount
Dabentures outstanding at the beginming of the year 7,275.12 7,275.13
Debantures cutstanding at the end of the year 7,275.13 7,275.13
This note covers the equity P of the issued o it . The liability companent is reflected in financial liabilities,
{iv) petails of shares held by the holding company
At at Asat
March 21, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Number Amount Numbar Amount
Jaspack Industries Private Limited
- Equity shares 9,00,000 00.00 5,00,000 S00.00
- Freference shares 14,588,700 1,4%3.70 14,995,700 L,483.70
(v} Shares hald by each shareholder holding mora than § percant shares:
As ab As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Numbers % holding Numbors 9% holding
Equity shares
Imspack Industies Privite Limited 5,00,000 20,00% 5,00,000 a0,00%
Zyash Dhawan {on bahe!f of Arash Dhawan HUF} 1,00,000 10.00% 1,00,000 10, 00%:
10,060,000 100.00% 10,00,000 100.00%
(vi} Decrease In authorised eguity share capital
The . smpany has cancelled 15,00,000 unissusd equity shares vide sharsholders® approval at the Extraordinary General Mesting {EGM) held on February 21, 2022,
{vil} Shares held by each promoter: {as per section 2(69) of the Companies acc 2013}
Equity Shares
5. Promoter Namsa As at March 31, 2024 As at March 21, 2023 Chanoe during % change during
No. Number of shares %% of total Number of % of total shares the year the year
held shares shares held
1| Jaspack Ind Private Lim ted &,00,000 0% §,00,000 S0% -
2| Aresh Dhawan 1,00,000 10% 1,00,000 10% =
{fon behalf of Arash Dhawan HUF)
Preference Shares
5. |Promoter Name As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 Change during % change during
Ho. Humber of shares %o of total Number of %% of total shares the year the year
shares shares held
1 |Jaspack Industries Private Limited 14,949,700 100%: 14,399,700 100%| -
As &t As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
15 Other aquity
Retained earnings {refer note 15.1) {12,260.42) (11,025.53)
Securities premium reserve {refer note 15.2) 254,43 B64.43
Equity component of optienally convertiole debentures (refer note 15.3} 7,275.13 2,275.13
(4,320.86) (2,858.87)
15.1 Retainad earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (11,029.53) (9,295.15)
Loes For thee year (1,433.71) (1,737.31)
Other comprehensive Incoms 2,82 5.83
Balance at the end of the year (12,460.42) {11,028.53)
The amount that can be distributed by the company as dividend to its squity sharehelder, is cetermined based on the requirements of Companies Act,2013. Thus, the amount reported above are not distributable
entirely,
15.2 Securities pramium resarve
Balance at the baginning of the year B64. 43 BE4.43
Balance at the end of the year BG4.43 B64.43
Securiies premium is used to record premium on issue of shares, The reserves can be utilised only for limited purposes in accondance with provisions of the Companies Act, 3013
15.3 Equity componeant of optionally convertible debentures
Batanca at the beginning of the year 727513 7,275.13
Balance at the end of the year 7,275.13 7,275.13
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16 Borrowings As at As at
—(Restated)*
MNon-current
{Secured, at amortised cost)
Term Loan (refer note (a) below) 2,058.20 2,320.53
Vehicle loan (refer note (b) below) 6.13 12,36
2,064.33 2,332.89
Less: Current maturitles of Term Loan (830.46) (1,337.10)
Less: Current maturities of Vehicle Loan (6.13) {6.23)
1,227.74 989.56
{Unsecured, at amortised cost)
Liability compenent of compound financial instrument (refer note (d) below) 10,949.13 5,755.86
10,949.13 9,755.86
12,176.87 10,745.42
Current
(Secured, at amortised cost)
Cash Credit Facllity from Bank {refer note (e) below) 7,6B3.69 6,942.23
Current maturities of Vehicle loan 6,13 6.23
Current maturities of term loan B30.46 1,337.10
Packing Credit facility fram bank{refer note (f) below) 688.94 -
9,209.22 §,285.56
Note:

(a) The company has obtained a total term loan amounting to INR 5,000.00 lacs {March 31, 2023: 5,000.00 lacs) for the purpose of purchasing property, plant and equipment from Citi Bank against which
INR 983.43 Jacs (March 31, 2023 :INR 2,320.53 lacs) Is outstanding as at March 31, 2024 These facilities are secured by primary security of hypothecation by way of first and exclusive charge on fixed
assels including Plant & Machinery of the Company along with corporate guarantee by Mankind Pharma Limited and carry Interest rate in the range of TBILL+(2.00 to 4.49) p.a. and repayable in 1 to &
Quaterly equitable installments.

(b} The company has obtained a foreign currency term foan amounting to INR 1,067.00 lacs (USD 12.89 lacs) (March 31, 2023; INR Nil) for the purpose of property, plant and equipment fram Citi Bank
against which INR 1,074.77 lacs (March 31, 2023 :INR Nil lacs) is outstanding as at March 31, 2024 These facilities are secured by primary security of hypothecation by way of first and exclusive charge
on fixed assets Including Plant & Machinery of the Company along with corporate guarantee by Mankind Pharma Limited and carry interest rate in the range of 3M T-Bill + 2,45% p.a. and repayable in 15
Quaterly equitable installments.

{c)  Wehicle Loan is secured by hypothecation of respective vehicle and repayable in 11 bl thly ir s and carrles Interest at 7.30% p.a,

(d)  Liability component of compound financial instrument includes interest accrued of INR 5,684.26 lacs and INR 4,490,928 lacs for the year ending March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively.

(e) Cash Credit facilities form Citi Bank are secured by exclusive charge on all present and future book debts and inventory of the Company along with carporate guarantes by Mankind Pharma Limited.

(A Packing Credit facility obtained from Citi Bank carries interest @ Rate of interest- 6.00% p.2. to 6.50% p.a. (March 31, 2023 : Nil) These facilities ara secured by following:-

{i) exclusive charge on present and future inventory and book debts
(i} exclusive charge on entire present and future moveable property, plant and equipment
Corporate guarantee by Mankind Pharma Limited.

(g) The Company has not defaulted on repayment of loans and Interest during the year,

(h) Changes In liability arising from financing activities:

Particulars Non-Current borrowings

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Current borrowings

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Total

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Opening balances 12,088.75 12,332.10 6,542.23 4,188.24 19,030.98 16,520.34
Interest expense (Refer note 28) 1,467.05 1,334.57 571.32 502.22 2,038.37 1,836.7%
Cash Inflow 1,067.00 33,066.07 49,557.13 34,133.07 49,597.13
Cash Ouflows (1,343.34) {1,342.53) {31,679.84) (46,843.13) (33,023.18) {48, 186.06)
Interest paid (273.77) 1234,99) (527.15) {502.23) (800.92% {737.22)
Farelan exchanae difference 177 = = = 1.77 E
Closing balances 13.013.46 12,088.75 8,372.63 5,942.23 21,386,009 19,030.98

(1} Quaterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the eompany with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts except Lo the following an account of variance of
entries posted In routine book closure process which is normally cancluded post filing of statements with the banks. This does not have any Impact on classification of laan or any debt covenants:-

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Quarter ended Mame of Bank Particulars Amount as per Amount as reported in Discrepancy*
booles of accounts the gquarterly
return/statement
(A) (8) (A-B)
June 30, 2023 CITL Bank Inventories 6,174.35 5,659.27 515.08
September 30, 2023 CITI Bank Inventories 6,046.20 6,186.52 {140.32}
December 31, 2023 CITI Bank Inventories 6,854 52 6,969.5] (74,951 |
June 30, 2023 CITI Bank Trade Recalvabla 3.815.77 4,352.64 (536.87)
September 30, 2023 CITI Bank Trade Recelvable 4,336.32 4,495.02 (162.70})
December 31, 2023 CITI Bank Trade Receivable 4,013.34 4,825.45 (B12.15)
March 31, 2024 CIT1 Bank Trade Receivable 4,370.43 4,622.76 (252.33)
June 30, 2023 CITI Bank Trade Payable 3,372.94 2,581.10 791,84
September 30, 2023 CITI Bank Trade Payable 3,684.28 2,662,868 1,021.40
December 31, 2023 CITI Bank Trade Payable 4,010.92 3,151.33 819,59
March 31, 2024 CITI Bank Trade Payable 3,606.37 2,620.79 G85.58
*vaninee is on aceound of entrics posted in rowtine hook chosure process wiich is normally corcl uded post ling of statemens with the banks,
As at As at

17 Lease Liability

Non Current
Lease Liability (refer note 4)

Current
Lease Liability (refer note 4)

18 Provisions

Mon-current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratulty (net)

Current

F for employee benefi
Provision for compensated absences
Provision for gratuity (net}

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

= 14.84

= 14.84
=

15.16 21.71

15.16 21.71

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

101,59 73.25
101.59 73.25
==
89.70 144,57
1.27 0.74
90.97

145.71
ARt
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19 Deferred tax balances

Peferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net)

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

(1,068.23)

1,068.23

(1,107.68)

1,107.68

Year endedMarch 31, 2024

Opening Balance

Recognised/reversed
in Profit or loss

Recognised/reversed in
other comprehensive
Income

Closing balance

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to

Property, plant and equipment (1,098.56) 33.89 _ (1,064.67)
Right of use assets (9.12) 5.56 - (3.56)
{1,107.68) 39.45 - (1,068.23)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 55.11 (5.70) (0.95) 48.46
Unused tax losses 1,043.37 (27.42) = 1,015.95
Lease liability 9.20 (5.38) 5 3.82
1,107.68 (38.50) {0.95) 1,068.23
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 0.85 (0.95) o
Year endedMarch 31, 2023 Opening Balance Recognised/reversed Recognised/reversed in Closing balance

in Profit or loss

other comprehensive
Income

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to

Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits
Unused tax losses

Lease liability

Others

‘Deferred tax liabilities {net)

(1,055.17) (43.39) = {1,098.56)
- (9.12) c (9.12)
(1,055.17) (52.51) - (1,107.68)
37.03 20.08 (2.00) 55.11
1,018.08 25.29 - 1,043.37
= 9.20 9.20
0.06 (D.06) - -
1,055.17 54.51 (2.00) 1,107.68
- 2.00 (2.00) -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws,




Packtime Innovations Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

20 Other liabilities

MNon-current

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Deferred government grant (refer note below) 612.91 =
612.91 -

Current

Contract liabilities .45 51.27

Statutory liabilities 163.44 352.46
172.93 403.73

Note:

Deferred government grant includes assistance in the form of duty benefit availed under Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG)
Scheme on import of property, plant and equipment accounted for as government grant and being amortised over the period of
contractual obligation.

Movement of government grant:

Opening balance - -

Add: grant received during the year 819.62 =
Less: government grant income (206.71) =
Closing balance 612.91 -

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
21 Trade payables
Current
I total eutstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises (see note 21.2 below) 106,69 470.03
il. total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,499.68 3,129.44
3,606.37 3,599.47
21.1 Trade payzble ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Unbilled Not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Dues Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 2 years
year
Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small = G3.48 42.24 .60 0.37 E 106.69
enterprises
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro 82.04 2,646.52 662.53 92.79 4.52 11.28 3,499.68
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises = - - - % = -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises = - - - - -
and small enterprises
Total 82.04 2,710.00 704.77 93.39 4.89 11.28 3,606.37
As at March 31, 3023
Particulars Unbilled Not due Qutstanding for ing periods from due date of payment Total
Dues Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
year
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small + = 469,15 0.a8 - & 470.03
enterprises
Total gutstanding dues of creditors other than micro 154.75 1,665.36 1,282.00 2.57 5.45 19.31 3,129.44
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises = = - - 2 - =
Disputed dues of creditors other than micre enterprises - - = - = - -
and small enterprises
Total 154.75 1,665.36 1,751.15 3.45 5.45 19.31 3,599.47

Note:
. The average credit period on purchases is upto 60 days for the Company.
. Trade Payables include due to related parties INR 278.21 lacs (March 31, 2023 : INR 202 lacs).
. The amounts are unsecurad and non-Interest bearing.

nooo

21.2 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act

Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmant Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
is given below, This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of Information available with the Company,

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

{i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered

under MSMED Act:

- Principal amount 100,04 AG3.93

- Interest therean 6.65 6.10
{if) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the MSMED Act, 2006

along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day - -

during each accounting year

The amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which

have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the = =

interest specified under this Act
{iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of each accounting year 6.65 6.10

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006 z =

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the baisi of informatien collected by the management, This has been relied
upan by the auditor,

22 Other financial liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Capital creditors 25.50 7.16
Cierivatives not designated as hedge - carried at FYTPL 26.84 -

52.34 7.16
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23

23.1

(a

—

(b)

{c)

(d)

23.2

Revenue from aperations

Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of products

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

24,867.51 19,177.66
24,867.51 19,177.66
Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:
Segment
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

{i) Type of goods/services
Packing Material
Total revenue from contracts with customers

(ii} Geographical Information

Within [ndia

Cutside India

Total revenue from contracts with customers

(iii) Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point of time
Total revenue from contracts with custemers

Contract kalances

Trade receivables (refer note 11)
Contract liabitties (refer note 23)

Trede receivables are non interest bearing. Credit period generally falls upto 30 days.
Contract flabilities consist of short-term advances received to supply goods from customer.

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price
Adjustments:
Sales return

Revenue from contracts with customers

Performance obligations

24,867.51 19,177.66
24,867.51 19,177.66
19,005.66 14,612.15
5,861.85 4,565.51
24,867.51 19,177.66
24,867.51 19,177.66
24,867.51 19,177.66
4,370.,43 3,607.10
9.49 51.27
25,327.64 19,885.17
(460.13) (707.51)
24,867.51 19,177.66

Sale of goods: Performance obligation is satisfied when control of goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Other operating revenues
Export incentives
Scrap sales

- 4,72

174.86 121.67
174.86 126.39
25,042.37 19,304.05
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24

- Other income

Interest income

Interest income earned on:

- bank deposits (at amortised cost)

- financial assets (at amortised cost)
Interest received on income tax refund
Other interest income

Other
Government grant income

Gain on fareign currency transactions and translation (net)

Other

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

3.74 10,11
1.36 1.36
0.82 1.02
0.51 0.16
6.43 12.65
206.71 5
7332 76.36
0.78 1.04
280.81 77.40
287.24 920.05




Packtime Innovations Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

25 Cost of raw material consumed

26

27

28

29

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Inventory at the beginning of the year 4,047.03 2,716.71

Add: Purchases 19,648.05 16,777.26
23,695.08 19,493.97

Less: Inventory at the end of the year (3,077.01) (4,047.03)
20,618.07 15,446.94

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Opening Stock:

Finished goods 1,228.86 396.71

Work in progress 950.67 1,197.70
2,179.53 1,594.41

Closing Stock:

Finished goods 1,051.37 1,228.86

Work in progress 1,955.80 950.67
3,007.17 2,179.53

Net decrease/(increase) (827.64) (585.12)

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 1,157.09 1,000.45
Contribution to provident and other fund 32.40 31.73
Gratuity expense (refer note 36) 34.32 27.25
taff welfare expenses 13.68 11.02
1,237.49 1,070.45

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Finance Costs

Interest expense on borrowings (refer note below) 2,038.37 1,836.79
Interest on delay deposit of income tax 0.03 0.52
Interest on lease liabilities 2.29 0.90
Other finance costs 202.86 126.06

2,243.55 1,964.27
Note

It includes notional interest amounting to INR 1,135.42 lacs and INR 991.71 lacs for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31,

2023 respectively.

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 1,046.69 847.75
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 31.63 17.00
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5) 10.82 9.21

1,089.14 873.96




Packtime Innovations Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

30 Other expenses Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Consumption of packing materials 190.84 352.20
Power and fuel 942.61 794.88
Rent - 4.79
Repair and maintenance
- Machinery 68.66 79.85
- Building 23.82 9.06
- others 65.56 28.92
Insurance 49.14 31.36
Rates and taxes B.68 12.29
Communication expenses 6.71 6.07
Postage and courier 3.73 5.60
Travelling and conveyance 133,52 110.45
Printing and stationery 6.21 13.64
Freight cartage and other distribution cost 448.58 500.07
Commission and brokerage 77.97 0.73
Legal and professional charges 108.58 84.00
Payments to auditors (refer note below) Z.85 2,00
Training and recruitment expenses 2.67 H
Advertising and sales promotion expenses 111.07 107.74
Security expenses 30.63 28.78
Testing and inspection charges 8.59 2.04
Fees and subscription 0.10 0.96
Bank charges 45.07 25.37
Loss on sale and write off of property, plant and equipment (net) 0.14 =
Director sitting fees 4.40 4.00
Miscellaneous expenses 63.43 158.11
Total 2,403.66 2,362.91
Note:
Payments to the auditors (excluding input tax)

-Audit fees 2.70 125

-Tax audit fees 0.25 0.75

2.95 2.00
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31 Income taxes

31.1 Income tax recegnised in the Statement of profit and loss

Current tax
In respect of the current year
In respect of the previous year

Deferred tax

In respect of the current year
Impact of change in tax rate

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax

Statutory income tax rate
Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit

Effect of unused tax losses on which no deferred tax assets have been recognised

31.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Income tax relating to item that will nol be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan

Total income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into:

- Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- terns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(0.95) (2.00)
(0.95) (2.00)
(0.95) (2.00)

(1,434.66) (1,739.31)
25.168% 25.168%
(361.08) (437.75)
291.59 253.88

68.54 181.87
(0.95) (2.00)
(0.95) (2.00)
(0.95) (2.00)
(0.25) (2.00)
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As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
32 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent net provided for)
(I} Contingent liabilities
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
(i} Sales Tax including Goods and Service Tax (paid under protest INR 1.77 lacs (March 31, 2023 : INR NIl 23.51 =

(b)  Guarantees furnished to banks in respect of Letters of credits of INR 149,19 lacs {(March 31, 2023 INR 272.16 lacs) given to various third parties.

(i} Commitments

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not providad for are INR 67.50 lacs and INR 33.94 lacs as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
respectively.

b) The Company has given guarantee amounting to INR 48,19 lacs (March 31, 2023: Nil) to MSEDCL, TNR 1.00 lacs {March 31, 2023: INR 1.00 lacs) to Maharashtra pollution Control
Board and INR 100.00 Lacs (March 31, 2023 INR 100.00 lacs) to Hindalco Industries Limited.

The Company has sthar commitments for purchase orders which are issued after considering reguirements as per operating cycle for purchase of goods and services in normal course of
business.,

£} The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are any material foreceeable losses.

33 Segment Reporting

3a

A, Basis for segmentation

The operatiens of the Company are limited 1o one segment viz. Pharma Packaging products, which as per Ind AS - 108 "Operating Seaments" is considered the only reportable
segment,

B. Geographic Segment

The geographic information anlyses the Entity's revenue by the Company's Country of demicile. In presenting the geographic information, segment revenue has been based on the
selling location in relation to sale to Customer,

a) Revenue from customers
Particulars Year ended Year endad
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within India 19,005.66 14,612.15
CQutside India 5,861.85 4,565.51
24,B67.51 12,177.66
B) Nen Current assets {other than deferred tax assets and ather financial assets)
Particulars Year endad As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within India 12,950.92 11,938.80
Outside India - -
12,990.92 11,938.80
C. Mzjor Customer

Revenue from the major custamer based in India represented TNR 2,969.61 tacs (March 31, 2023; INR 5,051.79 lacs) and outside India are TNR 3,338.39 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR
3,033.9€ lacs) ous of company’s tolal revenues.,

Capital Man=agement

Far the purpose of the Company's capital nent, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary
abjective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard the Company’s ability to remain as a gaing concern and maximise the sharsholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, annual operating plans and long term and other strategic investment plans, In
arder to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to t holders, return capital to shareholders or lssue new shares, The current capital
structure of the Company is equity based and financing through short term borrowings. The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and shart term
borrowings as per the Company’s palicy to meet anticipated funding reguirements.

No ehanges were made in the ohjectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
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35 Financial Instruments

Financial risk management objective and policies

This section gives an overview of the significance of finandal instruments for the Company and provides additional information on the balance sheet, Details of significant accounting policies,
including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis an which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financlal asset, financial liability and
equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2 and Mote

Financial assets and liabilities:
The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their camrying amounts, are set out below:

March 31, 2024 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total carrying valua Total fair value
Financial assets

Trade recaivables - 4,370,43 4,370.43 4,370.43
Cash and cash equivalents - - 57.49 57.49 57.4%
Other non current financlal assets 2 s 65.12 65,12 65.12
Total - - 4,493.04 4,493.04 4,493.04
Financial liabi

Borrowings o = 21,386,009 21,386.00 21,386.09
Trade payables - - 3,606.37 3,606.37 3,506.37
Other current financial liabilities 26.84 - 25.50 52.534 52.34
Lease liabilities = 15.16 15.16 15.16
Total 26.84 = 25,033.12 25,059.96 25,059.96
March 31, 2023 FVTPL FVTOCT Amortised Cost Total carrying value Tatal fair value

Financial assets
Trade receivables

- 3,607.10 3,607.10 3,607.10
Cash apd cash equivalents = = 60.03 650.03 50.03
Other bank balances = = 231.40 231.40 231.40
Other non current financial assets = £ 39,78 39.78 39.78
Total - - 3,938.31 3,938.31 3,938.31
Financial liabilities
Barrowings % - 19,030.96 19,030.98 19,030.98
Trade payables = = 3,5599.47 3,599.47 3,599.47
Other current financial liabifities = = 7.16 7.16 7.16
Lease liahilities - = 36.55 36.55 36.55
Total i ) 22,674.16 22,674,156 22,674.16

Mote:- Investment also in

Fair value hierarchy
The tahle shown below s

<es financial instruments zaried at falr value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined below:
o Level 1 quoted prices (unacdjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

des investment in subsidiary which is carried at cost and hence not required to be disclosed as per IND AS 107 "Financial Instrument Disclosure”. Hence the same
have bean excluded fromn above table.

Lavel 21 inputs athar than guated prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the zsset or liability, either directly (i.e,, as pricez) or indirectly (i.e,, derved from prices)

s Level 3:inputs for the aseel or lizbility that are not based on observable market data {uncbservable inputs)

Risk management objectives

Risk management framework

The Company has exposurg to the following risks arising from financial Instruments:

- Liquidity risk;
- Interpst rate risk; and
- Credit risk

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establi and

ight of the Company’s risk management framewark.
The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls @nd Lo moniter risks and adherence

to lirmits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities, The Comparny, through its training, standards
and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control envirenment in which all employees understand their roles and abligations.

Financial risk
8}  Liquidity risk
The Company requires funds both for short-term operational needs as well as for long-term investment programme mainly in growth projects. The Company gencrates sufficient cash

fiows from the current operations which together with the available cash and cash equivalents provide liquidity both in the short-term as well as in the long-term,

The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy liguidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening our balance shzet. The maturity profile of the Company’s financial
linbilities based on the remaining period from the date of balance cheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below. The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted
cash obligation of the Company.

As at March 31, 2024

Financial liabilities

Less than 1 year 1-2 years . 2-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrmwings 9,209.22 988,13 33731 10,851.43 21,386,009
Trade payables 3,606,37 - - 3,606.37
Qther current financial liabilities 52,34 52.34
Lease liabilities 15,65 15.65
Total 12,683,58 988,13 337.31 10,851.43 25,060.45

As at March 31, 2023

Fil ial liabilities Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 8,285.56 9B8.13 337.31 9.419.98 19,030.98
Trade payables 3,599.47 - 3,599.47
Other current financial liabilities 7.16 - 7.16
Lezse liabilities 39.33 - - - 39.33
Total 11,916.19 988.13 337.31 9,419.98 22,661.61
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b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumant will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The exposure of the Company's
fixed rate financial liabilities to interest rate risk as follows:

Impact on profit and loss

As at Closing balance
1% Increase 1% Decrease
Borrowings March 31, 2024 10,436.96 (104.37) 104.37
Borrowings March 31, 2023 4,275.12 {92.75) 92.75

¢} Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on ils contractual ebligations resulting in financial loss to the Company, The Company has adoptad a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient colfateral, where appropriate, as a meang of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company regularly monitors its
counterparty limits by reviewing the outstanding balance and ageing of the same.

Possible credit risk Credit risk managemeant

Credit risk related to trade receivables Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company If a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual cbligations, and arises principally from the Company’s recevables
from customers and investment secdrities. Credit nsk is managed through credit approvals, establishing
credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants
credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts
and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other recelvables
and Investmants.

Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company's normal terms and
conditions of business. These terms and conditions are determined on a case to case basis with reference
to the customer's credit quality and prevailing market conditions. Receivables that are classified as 'past
due' in the above tables are those that have not been settled within the terms and conditions that have
been agreed with that customer,

Credit risk related to bank balances Company holds bank balances with reputed and creditworthy banking institution within the approved
exposures |limit of each bank. Mone of the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with
banks, are past due or impaired.

Other Credit risk The company Is exposed to credit risk in relation to security deposits.

The carrying valug of the financial assets other than cash represents the maximum credit exposure, The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2024 is INR 4,490.27 lacs
and as at March 31, 2023 is INR 3,929.87 lacs,

d)} Foreign currency risk

The company is exposad to currency risk on account of impart of goods or services from other countries. The functional currency of the company is Indian Rupee. Considering the countries and
economic enviarmment from which the company imports, ite operations are subject to risks arising from the fiucluations primarily in the US dollar, Currency risk exposure is evaluated and
managed through advance paymeants for procurements,

March 21, 2024 Impact on profit before tax and equity
Foreign Currency Indian Rupees 1% increase 1% decrease
MNature Currency in Lacs in Lacs in Lacs in Lacs
Raceivable US Dollar (USD) 7.23 603,14 6,02 (8.03)
Receivable EURD 3.55 319.03 319 (3.19)
Payable Us Dallar (USD) 3.B9 32417 (3.24) 3.24
Payable EURO 0.07 5.91 (0.06) 0.08
March 31, 2023 Impact on profit before tax and equity
Forelgn Currency Indian Rupees 1% increase 1% decrease
MNature Currency in Lacs in Lacs in Lacs in Lacs
Receivable Us Dellar (USD) 9.64 792,25 7.92 (7.92)
Receivable EURO 0.48 43.26 0.43 (0.43)
Payable GBP 0.05 5.45 (0.05) 0.05

Payable US Dollar (USD) 5.68 467.06 (4.67) a.67
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36 Employee Benefits:
The Company participates In defined contribution and benefit schemes, the assets of which are held (where funded) in separately administered funds.
For defined contribution schemes the amaount charged to the statement of profit or loss is the total of centributions payable in the year.

a. Defined contribution plan

The Company’s contribution to the Employees Provident Fund Is deposited with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner for qualifying employess. Under the scheme,

the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits,

During the year, the Company has recognised INR 32.40 lacs (March 31, 2023 : INR 31.73 lacs) for Employer's contributions to the Provident Fund, Employee State

Insurance,Mational Pension Scheme and others contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss, The contribution payable to the plan by the Company is at the rate

specified In rules to the scheme,

b. Defined benefit plan — Gratuity plan

The Company's contribution towards its gratuity liability is a defined benefit retirement plan,

The gratuity liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of an employee, The aforesaid lisbility is calculated on the basis of fifteen days sslary (i.e.

last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service subject to completion of five years service,

{I) Risks associated with Plan Provisions

Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks. These risks are:~ (i) interest rate risk (discount rate risk}, (i) mortality risk and {iii} salary growth risk.

Interest rate risk (discount rate risk) & decrease in Lhe bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability

Martality risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality
of plan participants. For this report we have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate table.

A change in mortality rate will have a baaring on the plan's liability.

Salary growth risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan
participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary In future for plan participants from the rate of]
increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2023. The present value

of defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

(ii) Principal actuarial assumptions:
Principle actuarial assumption used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation are as follows:
S. Particulars Refer note below As at As at
No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i. Discount rate (p.a.) 7.25% 7.36%
ii. Salary escalation rate {p.a.} 2 12.00% 12.00%
Notes
1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of obligations.
2 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes Into account the inflation, seniority, premation and other relevant factors,
(iif) Demographic assumptions: As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Mortality rate (100% of TALM (100% of TALM
2012-14) 2012-14)
Average outstanding service of employee upto retirement (years) 24.54 25.13
Mumber of employees 129 122
Attrition rate
Upto 20 years 5.00% 5.00%
From 31 to 44 years 4.00% 4,00%
Above 44 years 2.00% 2.00%

The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plan and amounts recognised in the Cempany’s financial statements:

a. A ts recognised in the t of profit and loss In respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Current service cost

28,87 23.06
Net Interest cost 5.45 4.19
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in statement of profit and loss 34.32 27.25
b. Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Actuarial {gzins)/losses due to change in demegraphic assumptions -
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in financial assumptions

(1.85)

1.48
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in experience variance {5.25) {6.08)
Component of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive (3.77) (7.93)

income
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The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense ' in the statement of profit and loss. The
remeasurement of the nat defined benefit liability is included in Lhe other comprehensive income.

c. The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefits plans as follows:

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 102.86 73.99
uUnfunded status - Surplus/({deficit) 102.86 73.99
Provision for gratuity {net) -Current (refer note 18) 1.27 0.74
Pravision for gratuity (net) -Nen Current (refer note 18) 101.59 73.25

d. Movement in the fair value of the defined benefit

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening defined benefit obligation 73.9% 58.39
Currant service cost 28.87 23.06
Interest cost 5.45 4,19
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation (3.77) {7.93)
Benefits paid (1.68) (3.72)
Closing d benefit obligati 102.86 73.99

The Company expects to make a contribution of INR 43.49 lacs and INR 33.76 lacs for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 resepectively to the
defined banefit plan during the next financial year.

e. Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below
have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions

constant.
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Decrease Increase Deacrease Increase
Discount Rate (-/+0.5%} 7.57 (6.83) 5.63 (5.07)
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
Salary Growth Rate (-/+0.5%) (5.88) 6,30 {4.52) 4.50
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

The sensitivity analysis presentad above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermare, in presenting the sbove sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated vsing the projected unit cradit method
at the end af the reporting period, which Is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit liability recognised In the Balance sheet.

There was no change in the metheds and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis frem prior years,

f.  The expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

As at As at
Expected cash flows over the next March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
First year 1.27 0.74
Second upto fifth year 20.14 10.78
Beyond fifth year B81.45 62.47
g.  Acturial pticns on p ed ab e
S. Particulars Refer note below As at As at
Mo, . March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i. Discount rate (p.a.) 1 7.25% 7.36%
ii. Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 2 12.00% 12.00%
Notes

1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance shest date for the estimated term of obligations.
2 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
3 The compensated plan is unfunded.

37 Earnings per Equity Shares

Baslc earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year. Diluted
earnings per equity share has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year,

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(Restated)*
Loss after tax INR Lacs (1,433.71) {1,737.31)
Weighted average number of equity shares Numbers 10,00,000 10,00,000
Mominal value of equity shares INR 100 100
Basic earnings per share INR (143.37) (173.73)
Diluted earnings per share INR {143.37) {173.73)

(see note 1 & 2 below)

1. Basic and Diluted EPS have been calculated only cansidering the number of Equity shares.

2. Opticnally convertible debentures that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in Lthe future have nol besn included in the calculation of diluted earnings per
share because they are antidilutive for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

*Please refer note no. 39 regarding disclosures pursuant to Ind AS-8.
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3B Relsted Party Disclosuras

tn with the reqs of Tndian
trangactions { year end balances with them,

A List of Related Porties {with whom the P

¥ had tons during the

Hoiding comaany
Ultsmate Hald:ng compeny

Fallow subsidiary

Fellow Assaciates

Key Managemant Personnal {KMP)

year}

Relatives of KMF {with whem transactions have taken place)

Cthers

B. Transactions occured during the year ended

Standard Ind {AS) = 24 'Related Party Disclosures’ the names of the related party where control exists/able to exercise significant influence afong with the aggregete

Jaspack Industries Private Limited
Mankind Pharma Limited

Medipack Innovations Private Limited
Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Panta Latex LLP

Copmed Pharmaceuticais Private Limited
Pharma Force Lab

Mankind Lifesciances Private Limited
Mediforce Healtheare Frivate Limited

Narth East Pharma Pack [partnershig firm)
Shree Jee Laboratory Private Limited

swrmaur Remsdies Frivate Limited
J K Print Packs (Partrership firm)

Arash Dhawan [Whals Tims Diractor)

Arjin Jureja {Directar)

Sheetal Arors {Director)

Paoja Anand {Incependant Director)

Anjus Kurmar Jha (Independant Director}

Amol Shivaji Khankari (Chief Financial Dfficer)
Kapil Kumar Ruhsls {Cormpany Secretary}
Rahu| Rastogi (Compazny Secretary)

Archit Dhawan
Archit Chemicals Private Limited

Clarian Pharmaceuticals €o.
Next Wave (India}

Particulars

Holding /Ultimste Holding
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Fallow subsldiary

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

EMP
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Others
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

(i) Intarest pald*

Jaspack Industries Private Limited 125.40 52289 * o = - = 4 12540 522,89
125.40 522,88 > ] > : = - 125.40 £22.89
(it} Remuncration paid
Arash Dhawan - - - = 35.00 38.70 = 36.00 35.70
- - - = 36.00 35.70 - = 36.00 35.70
{1i}. Purchase of services
Merth East Pharma Pack (partnership firm) - - - 1.32 - - i . . 1.32
- - = i32 = = = - = 1.32
{1v). Purchase of Goods
Mankind Pharma Limited = a68.40 * . ] £ - - - 858.40
Medipack Tnnavations Privata Limited . - 20.74 2.63 = * + z 29.74 263
Clarion Pharmaceuticals Co. - * . - - . 92.14 14188 92.14 141.59
Archit Chemicais Private Limited = A - > - L 20.80 1303 20.80 13.03
cl 868.40 29 2,63 g = 112.95 154,62 14268 1,035,685
(¥). Reimbursament mada
Arash Dhawan = - . - 7.76 . . . 7.76 -
Archit Dhawan - 2 - » 7.35 6,86 . - 7,35 686
= = - - 15.11 6.86 - - 15131 6.86
{vi). Sale of Goods [Net of Sales Return)
Mankind Pharme Limited 1,314.08 923.64 . nd * - . . 1,314.08 928.84
Ralax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited - - 255 236 - = - . 255 2.96
Copmed Pharmacsuticals Private Limited - -, 71.60 0.21 *. 2 r 33 T1ED 021
Hedipack Innovations Privats Limited = ¥ 2,988.71 2,072.36 - - - 2,968.71 2,072.36
Hankind Lifesciences Private Limited - - [ 21,490 - - - - - 21.40
Fenta Latax LL® . - 147.06 26137 - - - - 147.06 261,37
Medifarce Heatthcare Private Limited - - 948 + + = E ] 948 "
Shree Jee Laborstory Private Limited r = 0.26 . " . - - 0.26 =
1K Print Facks - = .30 . - = - = #.30 *
Pharma Force Lab . - 0.28 - - - - - 0.28 '
Sirmour Remedies Private Limited - * 18,18 - . . . . 1B.16 A
Mt Wave {India) 52.49 5749 -
1,314.08 B4 3,279.89 2,358.30 * = - = 4,593,206 3,287.14
{vii). Repayment of barrowing
laspack Industries Private Limited 5.00 r J - = - - 5500 5.00
5.00_ P - - - = - 55.00 500
[wili). Financial guarantea taken
Menkind Pharma Limited 14,550.00 3,350.00 s 5 - 14,550.00 3,350.00
14,550.00 3,350.00 = > = = L3 o* 14,550.00 3,350.00
(ix). Othar gxpanse
Meankind Pherma Limited 15.35 o - = & - - . 16.35 .
Medipack Innovations Private Limited L3 - 4.70 - - - - - 470 -
15.35 = 4.70 <l = = i = 20.06 =
{%}. Guarantee Commission paid
Mankind Pharma Limited 113.82 T7.86 * - ¥ =3 - J 113.82 77.88
11383 77.88 - - - - - - 113.52 77.98
(xi}. Director Sitting fee
Anju Kumari Jha X ] . - 230 .00 + . 220 2.00
Pooja Anand - - - 3 2,20 2.00 .30 2.00
: = : - a.40 400 = - a0 a.00_
*Exeludes interest sxpense on fsbifity of Optianally C D
C. Balances outstanding as at year ended
Particulars Holding /Uitimate Holding Fellow subsidiary KMP Others Total
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i). Interest sccrued on debentures
Jaspack Industries Private Limited 580.78 §22.69 > (2 = ¥ > E SE0.75 522,89
£22.89 = = - = - - 580.75 522.89
{11). Trade Payables
Mankind Pharma Limited 27747 155.23 . - . . = * 27747 155.23
Arash Dhawan - - - - 074 2.58 - - 0.74 2.98
Clarion Pharmaceuticals Ca, - - . - . . . 3019 . 30.19
Archit Chemicals Private Limited ¥ = n - - - 2. 13.60 > 12,60
277.47 155.23 5 = 0.74 2.98 b 43.79 278.21 202,00
(iii). Trade recelusble
Mankind Pnarma Limited 115.79 1195 * s = = - - 115.79 1186
Medipack Innavations Private Limited . - 90.87 E - - - - 087 x
Mankind Lifescisnces Private Limited - = . 0.01 . B - - 0.0t
Penta Latex LLF . > 152,04 1711 - - - % 152.04 1711
Copred Pharmaceuticals Frivate Limitad . - 50.09 0.13 = . - - 50.0% 013
Sirmour Aemedies Private Limited " - 14.59 L - o - - 14.55 o
Madiforce Hezlthcare Private Limited = = B.33 - * = * . 8.33
J K Print Packs = . §.26 > - - - . 9.26 =
11579 11.95 332518 17,25 - - - - 440,97 29.20
{Iv}, Financial guarantes taken
Mankind Pharma Limited 14 550.00 13,160.00 = x - 14,550.00 13,160.00
14,550.00 13,160.00 - - x = = -} 14,550 13,160.00
{v). Equity of o v P Shares —
Jaspack Industries Private Limited 1,254.62 1,254.62 2 = . 1,254 62 1,254.62
1,254.62 1,254.62 = L > a = = 1,254 62 1,254,632
(wl}. Advance from Customears
Medipack Innavations Private Limited £ * & 2761 - - - - - 27.61
- - - 2761 - - - - - 27.61
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Disclesures pursuant te Ind AS-8 *Accounting pokicies, changes in accounting estimates and errors” (specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2015) are 'given below: Fellowing are the restatements made in the current year financial statements in previous year.

Pasticulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 MNature

{R: rted) {Restated)
Liabilities
Equity Share Capital 1,000,101 2,499.70 | Reclassification items
Equity Compenent of Optional Convertible Preferance Shares 1,254 .62 - Reclassification items
Ligbility component of compound financial instrument 10,030_34 9,755.86 | Reclassification items
Retalned Earnings {11,058.93 {11,02%.53)] Reclassification items
Expenses
Interest expense on borrowinas 1,866.19 1.836.79
Loss before tax {1,768.71) (1,739.31}
Loss after tax {1,766.71) (1,737.31)
Total comprzhensive loss for the year (1,760.78 {1,731.38)
Earnings per shara {Basic/Diluted) (176,67} (173.73]

The above restalements in previous year have been made wherever necessary to reflect the mirror accounting adopted by the holding company in respect of optionally convertible preference shares in
accordznce with the provisions of Ind AS-32 “Finandial Instruments : Presentation” . These restatements does not have any material impact.

Ratio Numerator Denominator Year ended March  Year ended March 21, %y Change Remarks
31,2024 2023
Current Ratlo Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.85 0.89 (4.27%)
Debt- Equity Ratio Tobal Debt Shareholder’s Equity (11,74} {48.76) {75.92%} refer comment 1
Debt Service Coverage ratio Earnings for debt service = Net Debt service = Interest & Lease (0.05) {0.02) 156.20%  refer comment 2
profit after taxes + Interest + Non-  Payments + Principal
cash eperating expenses Repayments
Return on Equity ratie MNet Profits after taxes — Preference  Average Shareholder's Equlty 129.66% (492.31%) (126.34%) refer comment 1
Dividend
Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 3.16 2.78 13 66%
Trade Receivabie Turnover Ratio Net credit sales = Gross credit sales Average Trade Receivable 6.28 6.65 (5.57%)
- sales return
Trade rayable Turnover Ratic Met credit purchases = Gross credit  Average Trade Payables 545 5h3 {1.30%)
purchases = purchase return
Met Capital Turnover Ratio Wet szles = Total sales - sales Working capital = Current {1,261.05%) {1,257.31%) 0.30%
return assets = Current |iabilities
Met Profit ratio Het Profit Met sales = Total sales - sales (5.73%) (9.00%) {36.39%) refer comment 3
return
Return on Capital Emplayed Earnings before interest and taxes  Capital Employed = Tangible 4.13% 1.21% 242.58%  refer comment 2

Hel Worth + Total Debt +
Deferred Tax liabalily

Reason for change mmie than 25% ¢

1, The mevement in current Period is primarily on account of declining value in shareholder's equity,

2. The movement in current Perlod is primarily on account of increase in saming available for debl services,
3. The mavement in cirent Perlud |5 on account of dispreariisnate increase In turnover,

The Cempany has used eccouming saftware for malnlaining its books of account which has a feature of jecording audit trall {edit log) facllity and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
Wansactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data for users with certain privileged access rights and alse for certain changes made using privileged/
administrative access rlght. Further no Instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of accounting software,

Other

(i} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory year,

(it} The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

{1i.} The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {1 di ) with the under

(&) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate BeneRiciaries T

that the Intermediary shall:

{iv) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(les}), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recerded In writing or otherwise) that the Company
shall; "

(@) directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries} or
(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{v) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recerded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (such as, cearch or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(vi}) Tha Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami praperty.

{wil} The Company has not been declared &s wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution er government or any government authority.

{vlii} The Company has complled with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

(ix) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

There ware no ameunts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection bund by the Company.
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